
MINUTES OF 

FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 12, 2020 

PRESENT: Peter F. Murphy, Chairman, Springfield District 

John C. Ulfelder, Dranesville District 

Timothy J. Sargeant, Commissioner At-Large 

Julie M. Strandlie, Mason District 

John A. Carter, Hunter Mill District 

Daniel G. Lagana, Lee District 

Evelyn S. Spain, Sully District 

Candice Bennett, Commissioner At-Large 

Andres Jimenez, Commissioner At-Large 

ABSENT: Mary D. Cortina, Braddock District 

Walter C. Clarke, Mount Vernon District 

Phillip A. Niedzielski-Eichner, Providence District 

// 

The meeting was called to order at 7:32 p.m., by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, in the Board 

Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center, 12000 Government Center Parkway, 

Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

'-

 

COMMISSION MATTERS 

On behalf of the Planning Commission, Chairman Murphy expressed condolences to the family 

of Commissioner Carter, whose mother passed away the previous week. 

// 

Chairman Murphy announced that the 2020 Committee Preference Form had been distributed to 
the Commission. He noted that two of the Committees listed on the form, the Policy and 

Procedures Committee and the Personnel and Budget Committee, had limited membership. He 
then instructed the Commission to complete the form and submit it by Wednesday, February 12, 

2020. 

// 

Chairman Murphy congratulated Leanna O'Donnell on her promotion to Division Director for 

the Planning Division in the Department of Planning and Development. He congratulated Chris 
Caperton on being promoted to Deputy Director of the Department of Planning and 

Development. In addition, he congratulated Keisha Strand on being promoted to Senior Deputy 
Clerk to the Planning Commission. 

// 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

Commissioner Sargeant announced that the Commission's Capital Improvement Program 

Committee would meet at 7:30 p.m. in the Board Conference Room of the Fairfax County 

Government Center on Thursday, February 13, 2020. 

// 

Commissioner Sargeant announced that Jacob Caporaletti, Clerk to the Planning Commission, 

had distributed minutes from the meetings from September 2019 through December 2019 to the 

Commissioners. He then announced his intent to move to approve these minutes at the 

Commission's meeting on Wednesday, March 4, 2020. 

// 

SE 2019-DR-012/ PCA 89-D-007-02/ 2232-D18-32 — MILESTONE TOWER LIMITED  

PARTNERSHIP IV D/B/A MILESTONE; FAIRFAX COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD;  

MILESTONE TOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP IV AND SPRINT 

(Decision Only) (The public hearing on these applications was held on February 26, 2020.) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have two items. First, we had a public 

hearing scheduled this evening for a monopole application at Herndon High School. We're going 

to defer that public hearing for two weeks. Therefore, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION DEFER THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR SE 2019-DR-012 AND PCA 89-D-007-

02, AS WELL AS THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR APPLICATION 2232-D18-32, MILESTONE 

TOWER LIMITED PARTNERSHIP IV, DOING BUSINESS AS MILESTONE AND THE 

FAIRFAX COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD, TO A DATE CERTAIN OF FEBRUARY 26, 2020. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in favor of 

the motion to defer the public hearing on these items to a certain of February 26th, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

The motion carried by a vote of 9-0. Commissioners Clarke, Cortina, and Niedzielski-Eichner 

were absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

PCA 2002-HM-043-04/CDPA 2002-HM-043-03/FDPA 2002-HM-043-06 — ARROWBROOK 

CENTRE, LLC  

(Decision Only) (The public hearing on these applications was held on January 29, 2020.) 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

Prior to going on verbatim, there was a discussion between Commissioner Ulfelder; Acahary 
Fountain, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Development; and John C. 
McGranahan, Applicant's Agent, Hunton Andrews Kurth, LLP, regarding revisions to the 
proposal that had been implemented during the deferral period in which the following 
modifications were highlighted: 

• The tree cover provisions had been revised to denote that the tree canopy require must be 
met on-site; 

• The applicant's request for the tree canopy waiver had been removed; 

• The number of electric vehicle charging stations had been increased; 

• The ability to add additional electric vehicle charging stations had been implemented; and 

• The trees that would be removed during construction would be replaced. 

At the conclusion of the discussion, Mr. Fountain stated that staff supported the changes and 
recommended approval of the subject applications. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Ulfelder: What this application comes down to is the swapping of density and 
building plans for land bays Al, B2, in order to meet current market demands. These types of site 
and building modifications were always contemplated as part of the overall long-term 
development of the Arrowbrook property. This application fits in with the original approved 
plans and development goals for the property, which have been subject to a number of 
modifications over time. As a result of the Commission's questions and suggestions at the public 
hearing, the applicant has made revisions to the draft proffers and to the proposed development 
conditions that, in my opinion, have further improved and strengthened this application. With 
that, would you Mr. McGranahan as a representative of the applicant state on the record your 
acceptance of the development conditions now dated February 12th, 2020? 

John C. McGranahan, Hunton Andrews Kurth, LLP(6): I confirm the applicant's acceptance of 
those conditions, yes. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Okay. Thank you very much. Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
APPROVE PCA 20— 2002-HM-043-04 [sic], AND THE ASSOCIATED CONCEPTUAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN AMENDMENT, SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF THE 
PROFFERS DATED FEBRUARY 10TH, 2020. 

Commissioner Carter: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded Mr. Clarke — and Mr. Carter. Is there a discussion of the motion? 
All those in favor of the motion as articulated by Mr. Ulfelder, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: I have a couple of others. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION APPROVE FDPA 2002-HM-043-06, SUBJECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 

CONDITIONS DATED FEBRUARY 12TH, 2020. 

Commissioner Carter: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded Mr. Carter. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in favor 

of that motion, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Further, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS — APPROVE THE REVISED 

WAIVERS AND MODIFICATIONS THAT HAVE BEEN DISTRIBUTED TO YOU THIS 

EVENING DATED FEBRUARY 12TH, 2020, WHICH NO LONGER INCLUDES A 

MODIFICATION OF THE 10-YEAR TREE CANOPY REQUIREMENT. 

Commissioner Carter: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded Mr. Carter. Is there a discussion of that motion? All those in favor 

of the motion, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

Commissioner Ulfelder: Thank you. Mr. Chairman 

Each motion carried by a vote of 9-0. Commissioners Clarke, Cortina, and Niedzielski-Eichner 

were absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

RZ/FDP 2019-SU-009/PCA 78-S-063-09/PCA 85-S-061-06/PCA 86-S-039 — ELM STREET 

COMMUNITIES, INC.  

(Decision Only) (The public hearing on these applications was held on January 29, 2020.) 

Prior to going on verbatim and at the request of Commissioner Spain, Emma Estes, Zoning 

Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Development, reviewed the revised proffer 

package dated February 7, 2020, a copy of which is in the date file, in which she highlighted the 

following modifications: 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

• The revisions to noise disclosure proffer for prospective purchasers; 

• The revisions to the noise mitigation provisions that would be utilized in the construction 
of the proposed dwelling units; 

• The revisions to the landscaping, tree preservation, and street lighting provisions; and 

• The revisions to the applicants post-construction testing efforts. 

Ms. Estes indicated that staff did not object to these revisions and recommended approval of the 
subject applications. 

There was a discussion between Gregory Riegle, Applicant's Agent, McGuireWoods, LLP, and 
Commissioner Spain regarding additional revisions to Proffer Number 42, Noise, in which the 
following modification was highlighted: 

• The process and timeframe for testing the noise mitigation provisions for the proposed 
dwelling units. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Spain: Alright, I'd like to go on verbatim. A couple of things that I'd like to note 
as we move forward. In observing the applicant and the proffers that have been offered, I can 
attest that it has a quality layout. I'm also very happy with — or I am, yes, happy with the 
reasonableness that the applicant has addressed all of the concerns that we have, that have been — 
asked of them. Uh, they have willingly made changes, updates according to whatever concerns 
or questions my fellow commissioners have brought forward. The main thing, it exceeds our 
policies for affordable housing, the workforce dwelling units will be — provided at a lower 
income level, and at least 12 percent of the units will be at affordable levels. So, townhome units 
that are affordable are in great need in Fairfax County. So, with that said, I am ready to make my 
motion, Mr. Chairman. 

Chairman Murphy: I think you'd better call Mr. Riegle down again to reaffirm. Mr. Riegle? 

Commissioner Spain: Mr. Riegle would you please. 

Chairman Murphy: For the record, please. 

Commissioner Spain: Come down for the record and reaffirm — the final development plans 
conditions dated, as of December 31', 2019, and the updates made as of yesterday. 

Gregory Riegle, McGuireWoods, LLP: Yes, the applicant agrees with those conditions 
and we will make the reference to update that, that was discussed prior to the verbatim. 

Commissioner Spain: Thank you. 

Mr. Riegle: Thank you. 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

Commissioner Spain: So, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVES PCA 78-S-063-09. I 

MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS APPROVES PCA 85-S-061-06. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE PCA 86-

7-039 [SIC]. I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVES RZ 2019-SU-009 AND ITS ASSOCIATED CDP, 

SUBJECT TO PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE DATED FEBRUARY 7TH, 2020 

AND WITH THE CHANGES THE APPLICANT HAS AGREED TO ON THE RECORD. I 

MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE FDP 2019-SU-009, SUBJECT TO 

THE DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED DECEMBER 31sT, 2019 AND SUBJECT TO 

THE BOARD'S APPROVAL OF THE CONCURRENT RZ, CDP, AND PCA APPLICATIONS. 

FINALLY, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE WAIVERS AND MODIFICATIONS 

CONTAINED IN THE HANDOUT DISTRIBUTED TO YOU THIS EVENING DATED 

FEBRUARY 12TH, 2020, WHICH WILL BE MADE PART OF THE RECORD. 

Commissioner Carter: I-I'll second that and including all of the motions. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Mr. Carter. Is there a discussion of all the motions? Billy? 

William O'Donnell, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Development: 

Um, there, there was one motion where, um, she mentions a PCA 867-039, please correct the 

record to say PCA 86-S-039. 

Chairman Murphy: WITHOUT OBJECTION. Ms. Strandlie? 

Commissioner Strandlie: Thank you Mr. Chairman. I am going to abstain — from this — from this 

vote. It's a question of whether I was going to vote no or abstain. We do a lot of work with 

disclosures, as I've, we had discussed during the hearing on the size of the garage, how many 

cars you can fit in, how many — whether you can put a deck on the back of the house. But, in this 

case, I don't think that — that disclosures, um, in writing are actually adequate to convey the 

sense that there are going to be 777's flying over these properties on a regular basis. And I 

appreciate the effort on affordable housing, that's extremely important. I just don't think that 

there's enough information available to the prospective buyers that they will know exactly what's 

going on, because I have seen people who have bought next to, for example, metros or railroad 

tracks, and there's a disclosure, but when you move in it's completely different. So, I'm going to 

abstain from this. 

Chairman Murphy: Further Discussion? Alright, all of those in favor the motions as articulated 

by Ms. Spring — Spain, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion Carries. One abstention, abstaining. Ms. Strandlie 

abstains. 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

Commissioner Spain: Thank you. 

Each motion carried by a vote of 8-0-1. Commissioner Strandlie abstained. Commissioners 
Clarke, Cortina, and Niedzielski-Eicluier were absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

II 

PCA 84-L-083-02 — UNITED COMMUNITY OF MUSLIMS OF THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA 
(Decision Only) (The public hearing on these applications was held on February 5, 2020.) 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

Commissioner Lagana: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman and my fellow Planning 
Commissioners and members of the community, I want to thank the applicant, United 
Community of Muslims and the Hawthorne Community for their comments and civil discourse 
throughout the process. I know there will be continued engagement with the surrounding 
community as this process continues. And as a result of that process, the strong application with 
— was further strengthened and improved upon. Following the February 5th  meeting of the 
Fairfax County Planning Commission and upon the suggestions of my fellow Planning 
Commissioners, the applicant agreed to incorporate the following improvements to the 
application, which I will briefly review. Proffer 1, to include the most recent revision date of the 
GDP. The GDP was previously updated to include stormwater measures and was updated again 
to include a revision date. Proffer 16, strengthened bollard lighting. That proffer was amended to 
strengthen the commitment to bollard lighting. The language describing the substitute lighting 
now includes a reference to the lighting shown on the GDP. Additionally, the applicant has made 
a commitment to incorporate measures, such as bollard caps or covers, to minimize light from 
the bollard lighting emitting upward and have been added to the proffer. Proffer 20, Phase One, 
Environmental Site Assessment. The applicant has agreed to submit a phase one ESA at the time 
of site plan, as well as a phase two ESA, if required. Typically, ESA requirements are determined 
at the, at the time of site plan but given the industrial history of the site, the applicant has 
committed to the ESA during the entitlement process. And lastly, as discussed in the previous 
meeting, the applicant has removed the possibility of large and culturally significant events, such 
as weddings and funerals. The result is a strong application, one in which relevant facts regarding 
the site and surrounding communities were incorporated into the application. In that same 
thought, base, vain, and spirit, I do wish to address a few topics that arose during the public 
hearing. I-5 zoning and by-right development. The site's I-5 zoning permits places of worship 
by-right. That is a fact. According to the Fairfax County Zoning Ordinance, permitted uses 
include, churches, chapels, temples, synagogues, and other such places of worship. Other 
commercial uses, and this came up a few times. There exist many other permitted commercial 
uses, which could very well cause a noise disturbance and traffic disturbance, such as craft 
breweries, or maybe just as disturbing, crematories. I think we should all sort of take that into 
consideration. This application strengthens the site. The application received the overwhelming 
support of the Lee District Land Use Committee, is supported Fairfax County staff, and I 
recently received a letter from the South County Task Force for Human Services, the Association 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

of not-for-profit community based organizations in the Southeast Fairfax County area. Therefore, 

Mr. Chairman, I move that the Planning Commission recommend to the Board of Supervisors 

approval of PCA... 

Daniel Creed, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Development: 

Commissioner Lagana. 

Commissioner Lagana: Yep. 

Mr. Creed: Just one point of clarification, if I may. The - the proffers allow for weddings and 

funerals. They do not allow for wedding and funeral receptions to — take place. 

Commissioner Lagana: Okay. 

Mr. Creed: So, I just wanted to clarify that. Thank you. 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. 

Commissioner Lagana: Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I move that the Planning Commission 

recommend... 

Chairman Murphy: Do we have to have the applicant come down on this? 

Mr. Creed: No, there's no development conditions just a... 

Chairman Murphy: Okay. Sony. Go ahead. 

Commissioner Lagana: Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF PCA 

84-L-083-02, SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE 

DATED FEBRUARY 7TH, 2020, AND I FURTHER MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE 

WAIVERS AND MODIFICATIONS AS LISTED IN THE HANDOUT DATED FEBRUARY 

4TH, 2020. 

Commissioners Bennett and Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded by Ms. Bennett and Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the 

motion? All those in favor of the motion, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

Each motion carried by a vote of 9-0. Commissioners Clarke, Cortina, and Niedzielski-Eichner 

were absent from the meeting. 
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COMMISSION MATTERS February 12, 2020 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

'-

 

ORDER OF THE AGENDA  

Secretary Sargeant established the following order of the agenda: 

1. SEA 81-M-058-03 — MCDONALD'S CORPORATION 

This order was accepted without objection. 

// 

SEA 81-M-058-03 - MCDONALD'S CORPORATION —  Appl. 
under Sects. 7-601, 7-607 and 9-601 of the Zoning Ordinance to 
amend SE 81-M-058 previously approved for a fast food restaurant 

with drive through to permit site modifications and associated 

modifications to development conditions. Located 4803 Leesburg 

Pike, Alexandria, 22302 on approx. 1.38 ac. of land zoned C-8, 

CRD, SC and HC. Mason District. Tax Map 62-3 ((1)) 34. 

MASON DISTRICT. PUBLIC HEARING. 

G. Evan Pritchard, Applicant's Agent, Venable, LLP, reaffirmed the affidavit dated January 17, 
2020. 

Sharon William, Department of Planning and Development (DPD), Zoning Evaluation Division 
(ZED), presented the staff report, a copy of which is in the date file. She noted that staff 
recommended approval of application SEA 81-M-058-03. 

Mr. Pritchard gave a presentation on the subject application. 

There was a discussion between Mr. Pritchard; Ms. Williams; Nicholas, T. Georgas, Engineer, 
Bohler Engineering VA, LLC; Evan J. Scott, Architect, AECOM Technical Services, Inc.; and 
multiple Commissioners on the following issues: 

• Clarification on the vehicular circulation patterns of the restaurant site; 

• Clarification on the location of parking spaces; 

• Clarification on the color of brick façade for the building; 

• Clarification on the proposed stormwater management provisions; 

• Clarification on outdoor seating arrangements and materials; 

• Clarification on the right-of-way for Leesburg Pike; 

• Clarification on the proposed landscape plans; and 

• Clarification on lighting for the American Flag. 

The discussion resulted in no changes to the subject application. 
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SEA 81-M-058-03 — MCDONALD'S CORPORATION February 12, 2020 

Chairman Murphy called for speakers from the audience, but received no response; therefore, he 

noted that a rebuttal statement was not necessary. There were no further comments or questions 

from the Commission and staff had no closing remarks; therefore, Chairman Murphy closed the 

public hearing and recognized Commissioner Strandlie for action on this item. 

(Start Verbatim Transcript) 

// 

Commissioner Strandlie: Mr. Chairman I have a —just a couple more questions, so I'm gonna go 

ahead and defer this for a week. And — we'll get this wrapped up and — February 19th, we're 

back. Okay, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER THE DECISION ONLY 

FOR SEA 81-M-058-03 TO A DATE CERTAIN OF FEBRUARY 19TH, WITH THE RECORD 

REMAINING OPEN FOR WRITTEN AND ELECTRONIC COMMENTS. 

Commissioner Sargeant: Second. 

Chairman Murphy: Seconded Mr. Sargeant. Is there a discussion of the motion? All those in 

favor of the motion to defer decision only on SEA 81-M-058-03 to a date certain of February 

19th, say aye. 

Commissioners: Aye. 

Chairman Murphy: Opposed? Motion carries. 

The motion carried by a vote of 9-0. Commissioners Clarke, Cortina, and Niedzielski-Eichner 

were absent from the meeting. 

(End Verbatim Transcript) 

// 
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Jacob Caporaletti. 

CLOSING February 12, 2020 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:21 p.m. 

Peter F. Murphy, Chairman 

Timothy J. Sargeant, Secretary 

Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 

12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 552, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

Minutes by: Keisha Strand 

Approved on: May 20, 2020 

Jacob L. Caporaletti, Clerk to the 

Fairfax County Planning Commission 

County of Fairfax 
Commonwealth of Virginia 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of—TO N...  26L-by 

ignature of Notary 

Notary registration number:  \  

Commission expiration: )a\i\ckok  
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